
 

TIRZ BOARD 1 REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF BAY CITY 

Thursday, September 09, 2021 at 3:30 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS | 1901 5th Street 

Bay City is committed to developing and enhancing the long-term prosperity, sustainability, 
and health of the community. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER & CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES SUMMARY 

1. Accept minutes summary from the August 12, 2021 TIRZ #1 Board Meeting 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Presentation ~ Receive and/or discuss a presentation from Sal Holding of TIRZ 
#1 Downtown Improvements and Time Line. Stuart Lynn, Sal Holding, LLV 

3. Discuss, consider, and/or approve an extension for the current development 
agreement between between SAL Holdings LLC and the TIRZ #1 regarding 
Phase II. SAL Holdings, LLC 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE 

This is to certify that the above notice of a Special Called Meeting was posted on the front window 
of the City Hall of the City of Bay City, Texas on Friday, September 7, 2021 before 3:30 p.m. 
Any questions concerning the above items, please contact Mayor Robert K. Nelson at (979) 245-
2137. 

AGENDA NOTICES: 

 

Page 1



 
 
Agenda TIRZ Board 1 Regular Meeting September 09, 2021 
 

 
Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: 

It is anticipated that members of other city board, commissions and/or committees may attend the 
meeting in numbers that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or 
committees. Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a 
meeting of the other boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in 
attendance. The members of the boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions 
on the same items listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such 
in attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that board, 
commission or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

The facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces available. Request for 
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the 
City Secretary's Office at 979-245-5311 or email, citysecretary@cityofbaycity.org for further information. 

 

Page 2



 
 

Minutes TIRZ Board 1 Regular Meeting  August 12, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 1 

CALL TO ORDER & CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

Board meeting was called to order by the Board Chairman, William Bell Jr. at 3:30 pm. 

PRESENT 
William Bell Jr, Chairman  
Craig Hlavinka 
Samantha Denbow 
William Cornman 
Edward "Bubba" Cook 
 
ABSENT 
Julie Estlinbaum, Vice Chair 
Bryan Prochnow 
DC Dunham 
Julie Estlinbaum, Vice Chair 
Kent Pollard 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve the agenda, Seconded by Samantho 
Denbow. Voting Yea: Craig Hlavinka, Samantha Denbow, William Bell Jr, William Cornman, 
Bubba Cook. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES SUMMARY 

1. Accept minutes summary from the July 15, 2021 TIRZ #1 Board Meeting. 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve the minutes of July 15, 2021, Seconded 
by Craig Hlavinka. Voting Yea: Craig Hlavinka, Samantha Denbow, William Bell Jr, 
William Cornman, Bubba Cook. Motion carried. 
 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Discuss, consider, and/or approve appointment of Vice Chair. 

Page 3

ITEM #1.



 
 

Minutes TIRZ Board 1 Regular Meeting  August 12, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

 

Motion made by William Cornman to nominate Julie Estlinbaum as Vice Chair of the 
Board, Seconded by Craig Hlavinka. Voting Yea: Craig Hlavinka, Samantha Denbow, 
William Bell Jr, William Cornman, Bubba Cook. Motion carried. 

3. Discuss, consider, and/or approve an extension for the current development 
agreement between between SAL Holdings LLC and the TIRZ #1 regarding 
Phase II. SAL Holdings, LLC 

Cindy Pardue, Property Manager with the Lynn Group, stated that the financials were 
lenghty to receive, COVID has slowed some work, waiting on grant that the City has 
applied for that will assist with financing and the drainage still needs completing. They 
would also like input from the property owners as to what they would like regarding the 
park and bridge. Chairman Bell stated that he did not think the time of extension was 
enough. Board took no action and tabled the item till September 9th. 

Motion made by William Cornman to table the item until September 9th, Seconded by 
Samantha Denbow. Voting Yea: Craig Hlavinka, Samantha Denbow, William Bell Jr, 
William Cornman, Bubba Cook. Motion carried. 

 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

There were no comments. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Bubba Cook to adjourn, Seconded by Craig Hlavinka. Voting Yea: Craig 
Hlavinka, Samantha Denbow, William Bell Jr, William Cornman, Bubba Cook. Motion carried 
and the meeting adjourned at 3:51 pm. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 

 

   

WILLIAM BELL, JR.; BOARD CHAIRMAN 

TIRZ BOARD #1 

JEANNA THOMPSON 

CITY SECRETARY 

. 

Page 4

ITEM #1.



 FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AGREEMENT  

BY AND BETWEEN  

THE REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER ONE,  

CITY OF BAY CITY, AND  SAL HOLDINGS, LLC. 

 

 This First Amendment to the Development Financing Agreement  (First Amendment) is 

entered into between the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One (TIRZ #1), City of 

Bay City, Texas, a home rule Texas municipality located in Matagorda County, Texas (City) 

and SAL Holdings, LTD., a Texas limited partnership (Owner). City and Owner are 

individually referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, on September 12, 2019, the City approved a Development Financing 

Agreement (Agreement) recommended by Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One and 

Owner on July 17, 2019; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner requests an twelve-month extension of its deadline to construct 

certain improvements described on Exhibit B of the Agreement; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits described in this 

Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby acknowledged, the TIRZ #1 and the Owner agree to this First Amendment as follows: 

 

1. 

Amendment 

  

1.0 Exhibit “E” Project Completion Schedule: 

Phase II 

Subject to reimbursement of Phase I 

To begin on or before September 20, 2019 and to be completed no later than 30 

months thereafter. 

 

 

2.0 The remaining provisions in the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

 

3.0 The effective date of this First Amendment is the date this First Amendment is last signed 

by a Party.  

 

[signatures follow] 

Page 5

ITEM #3.



 

2 

Recommended for approval by Tax Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Bay City, Texas at 

its meeting on the 9th day of September, 2021. 

 

 

SAL Holdings, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER 

Corportion ONE CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 

 

____________________________________________ 

Stuart Lynn, Member                             Date 

 
  _____________________________________________ 

William Bell, Chairman                             Date 

  
 

EXECUTED to be effective as of the ____ day of ______________ 2021. 

 

 

 

THE CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS, 

 

      By: _______________________ 

           Robert K. Nelson, Mayor 

      Date: _______________________ 

 

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Jeanna Thompson, City Secretary 

 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

________________________ 

Anne Marie Odefey 

City Attorney 

 

Page 6

ITEM #3.



Page 7

ITEM #3.



Page 8

ITEM #3.



Page 9

ITEM #3.



Page 10

ITEM #3.



Page 11

ITEM #3.



Page 12

ITEM #3.



Page 13

ITEM #3.



Page 14

ITEM #3.



Page 15

ITEM #3.



Page 16

ITEM #3.



Page 17

ITEM #3.



Page 18

ITEM #3.



Page 19

ITEM #3.



Page 20

ITEM #3.


	Top
	ITEM #1.	TIRZ 1 Minutes 210812
	TIRZ Board 1 Regular Meeting Minutes 210812 Draft

	ITEM #2.	Phase II Report
	ITEM #3.	Phase II Extension
	First Amendment -TIRZ #1 Agreement SAL Holdings0909_2021
	TIRZ 1 Agreement with SAL Holdings - 7-2019

	Bottom

